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The following history of the Salt Creek Township School 

System is a compilation of various articles written 

throughout the years.  These articles have been refor-

matted by the authors of this book and additional photos 

have been added to the articles to help illustrate the 

text.   

The first article in this book is a reformatted text of the 

first history written on the Salt Creek schools by Robert L. 

Bower who  attended the school when in the lower ele-

mentary grades.  At the 75th and 100th anniversaries of 

the school, the programs presented at these celebrations 

drew heavily from his work.  He was interviewed by or-

ganizers of the events in order to provide a detailed his-

tory of the school. 

Mr. Bower served for many years as the custodian of the 

school and has a love for history.  As a member of the 

Pickaway County Historical Society, he has contributed a 

lot of historical information that is housed at the Picka-

way County Genealogical Library.  Since he also attended 

Pickaway Township School and was a 1962 graduate of 

Logan Elm High School, he has contributed historical arti-

cles on these two schools as well.  Readers of the Histori-

cal Society's magazine, The Quarterly, are familiar with 

his work. 

David Beavers is also a 1962 graduate of Logan Elm High 

School  and is a retired high school mathematics teacher 

and superintendent of the Pickaway County Schools. Da-

vid is a past president of the Pickaway County Historical 

Society and is co-editor, along with his wife, Judy, of the 

society’s magazine, The Quarterly.  He has  spent untold 

hours researching the history of all the schools in Picka-

way County, as well as Laurelville in Hocking County.  In 

this book, he has filled in the gaps and added additional 

information in order to give a more complete history.  

There may be a few errors in this book due to some lost 

school records and the fading memories of alumni mem-

bers and former teachers who were interviewed.   

Bob and David would like to thank all who contributed 

information.   
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The former residents of this area were the Shawnee Indi-
ans.  The British took their land in 1763 but the Shaw-
nees kept on fighting until the British troops, led by Lord 
Dunmore, met with Chief Cornstalk at Camp Charlotte 
and signed the Peace Treaty of 1774.  The British lost this 
land to the American Colonies in the Revolutionary War. 

The Northwest Territory of 1787 was land north and 
west of the Ohio River.  An Ordinance of 1785 dealt with 
the surveying of this land and provided that Section 16, 
or one thirty-sixth of each township, whether it be good 
or poor land, be leased.  The revenue from this land 
would go to support public education within the town-
ship.  Ohio land, mostly east of the Scioto River, was di-
vided into townships each having 36 sections being one 
square mile. 

The 1787 Continental Congress passed an ordinance for 
the Northwest Territory to enable the 1785 Ordinance to 
be carried out.  This school endowment amounted to 
704,000 acres of land in Ohio.  After Ohio became a state 
in 1803, it became the responsibility of the Ohio State 
Legislature to carry out the intent of the Federal Govern-
ment.  Ohio was the first state to use this program to 
support education.  There were no examples to follow, 
and many mistakes were made in the administration of 
this land.  The program did not work because of the re-
strictions and obligations placed on the land leasers.   

Three trustees and a treasurer were elected by each 
township to lease the land and collect the rent and give 
the money to the education fund for schools.  The 1817 
Legislature granted a 99-year lease, renewable forever, 
with an appraisal to be made every 33 years and the rent 

fixed at 6% of the appraised value.  These plans did not 
work either. 

The Congress of 1826 allowed for the lands to be re-
leased and sold.  The early settlers soon learned that the 
school land, Section 16, could be obtained at a cost well 
below the going price charged by the United States Land 
Office.  Not only was their price firm, but it also required 
cash in full on the date of purchase. 

The 1796 Congress employed Ebenezer and Jonathan 
Zane to mark the route of an Indian Trail from Wheeling, 
Virginia (now West Virginia) to Maysville, Kentucky.  
Settlers used the trail, called Zane’s Trace, that passed 
through Tarlton and Leistville located in Salt Creek Town-
ship.  Before and during 1797, squatters settled in this 
area until the land east of the Scioto River was first 
offered for sale at a land office in Chillicothe in 1801.  
This route was later called the Zanesville and Maysville 
Turnpike.  A toll house was along this route at the top of 
the hill west of Tarlton, on the north side of the road, 
approximately one mile east of Shoemaker Road. 

Salt Creek Township was part of Washington County, of 
the Northwest Territory in 1790 and a part of Adams 
County in 1797.  When Ohio became a state in 1803, Salt 
Creek was part of Fairfield County. Pickaway County was 
formed in 1810 by the Worthington Survey and consisted 
of townships taken from Franklin and Ross Counties and 
included Salt Creek from Fairfield County.  Some people 
say the name Pick-a-way was the style in which the land 
was chosen.  The name was actually a misspelling of the 
Indian word Piqua.  Circleville was formed and the State 
Legislature incorporated it in 1810. 

When and if the early settlers wanted their children to 
learn to read, write or learn arithmetic, the parents had 
to teach them at home.  Some parents felt their children 
needed to work at home and learn their family trade, not 
book-learning.  The settlers had to learn to survive off 
the land first. 

There were arguments for and against schooling.  The 
first form of education was time spent memorizing Bible 
passages.  Sometimes ministers held classes in their 
churches.  In some areas schools were built before the 
church and church services were held in the school class-
room. 

The first school buildings were not fancy, but they were 
better than no school at all.  The winds whistled through 
the building in winter.  Children sat huddled together in 
order to keep warm.  The earliest school rooms were 
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heated by smoky fireplaces.  The children close to the 
fire were too hot and those farthest away froze.  Even in 
later schools they had the same trouble with the stoves.  
Students took turns going to school early to start the fire 
for the day.  Sometimes it was so cold that the home-
made ink froze in the ink wells. 

The first schoolhouses were made of logs.  They had dirt 
floors.  The windows were covered with greased paper.  
Lard was rubbed into the paper to make it transparent.  
There were no single desks in the early schoolhouse.  
Children sat on benches at a narrow table.  There was no 
support for their backs.  The students often faced the 
walls because the tabletops were built into the wall on 
hinges.  The smaller students sat on benches and had to 
dangle their feet because their legs were too short to 
reach the floor. 

For the children, having to sit still for so many hours was 
not an easy task.  They would rather be working, playing 
or fishing.  Because of the age difference from five to 
twenty-one years of age, the teacher, who was almost 
always a male, had a hard job not to bore the students 
with the same lessons over and over.  He could not 
teach everyone at the same time.  Some students fell 
asleep because they were in different grades and had to 
wait their turn.  Some students were older than the 
teacher.  They soon learned all the teacher had to teach 
and some would harass the teacher.  Often the teacher 
was too busy to think of something more interesting to 
teach.  Many classes were devoted to reciting and mem-
orizing. 

Discipline was harsh.  The children had to stand in a cor-
ner, wear a dunce cap, balance themselves on a block of 
wood or wear signs tied around their necks.  Many 
teachers used a leather strap or a hickory stick for pun-
ishment.  Thus the saying, “taught to the tune of a hicko-
ry stick.” 

Most of the lessons in the early school days were written 
on a small slate board that each student carried to and 
from school each day.  Paper was scarce and too expen-
sive. 

Early educators embraced the idea “Learn something, so 
you can do something, so you can get something, then 
you will possess something.”  

The first reported school in Salt Creek Township was the 
Whisler School, named for the people who donated land 
in Section 24, built about 1803. A log schoolhouse was 
built in Tarlton about the same time. 

The first school built in the southwest portion of the 
township, about 1805, was in Section 33, and known as 
the Prairie View School. It was a log structure that was 
later moved to the Village of Whisler. It is still standing, 
as part of a remodeled house in Whisler, after being 
moved a second time to its present location. There were 
other log and frame schoolhouses built in Salt Creek 
Township during the early 1800s but I could not get in-
formation as to their exact location. 

A law of 1835 mandated that a school be built near the 
center of each school district of the township and a 
board of directors be elected to serve. The districts and 
schools built before 1900 were 

District Number 1 Weitzel ……………………………..Section 12 

District Number 2 Tarlton……..………………………….Section 3 

District Number 3 Leistville………..…………………….Section 7 

District Number 4 Whisler……….……………………..Section 32 

District Number 5 Stringtown……………….………..Section 22 

District Number 6 Pumpkin Ridge…………………..Section 23 

District Number 7 Crites…………………...……………Section 15 

District Number 8 Imler………………………………….Section 20 

District Number 9 Oak Grove (Pick. Twp.)…..….Section 25 

District Number 10 Toad Run ……………..……...…Section 36 
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The above map shows where most of the one-room schools were located.  The map was 

created by former Pickaway County Historical Society president, Terry Frazier. 
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On April 20, 1833, Jacob and Elizabeth Weitzel sold ¼ 
acre of land in the northwest quarter of Section 12, 
Township 11, Range 20. The land was purchased for 
$1.00 as recorded in Volume II, page 274, of the Deed of 
Records of Pickaway County. It was deeded to the school 
directors of District Number 1: Richard B. Julian, Hugh 
Rest and William Loofborrow. 

On December 9, 1854, Jacob and Elizabeth Weitzel 
bought and sold the same property as recorded in Vol-
ume 29, page 597, to the Salt Creek Township School 
Board of Education. 

The frame schoolhouse was built in 1833. It was sold and 
moved in 1877 when the brick schoolhouse was built. 
The bell and belfry were added to the building April 17, 
1893. 

The teacher in 1898 was Charles F. Kreider. The school 
board member in 1899 was Elias Spangler. The school’s 
name has been listed many ways, such as Wetzel, Weit-
zel, Whitzel, Wheitzel, Whitesel, Whitsel, Whitesell. 

On January 13, 1917, Daisy Judy paid $300 for the prop-
erty. Orley Judy, her son, remodeled the building as a 
residence, as it is today. Orley Judy also served as a 

school board member of the Salt Creek Centralized 
School.  

As it appeared in 1983 
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The 1853 Tarlton Academy 

About 1804 a log school was built in Tarlton. It was the 
first school in town and the second in the township. The 
teacher was a Mr. Mitchell. 

In 1853 a two-story brick school building was built on a 
hill in the northwest quarter of Section 3, Township 11, 
Range 20. The land had been sold by Joseph and Eliza 
Shoemaker to the Tarlton Road of School District Num-
ber 2 for $1.00. School board members were Hugh Wil-
son, William H. Dunkel, and Joseph Shoemaker. The 
transfer of the ¼ acre of land was recorded June 27, 
1853, Volume 29, page 94, Pickaway County, Ohio. 

In 1899 the two-story brick school building was taken 
down and replaced by a three-room brick school. The 
new school was nicknamed the “Eagle Wing School.” It 
cost $4000 to build and furnish the new school. 

The Board of Tarlton Village School District was changed 
to the Tarlton Rural School District by Dorothy Weiner, 
State School Examiner, January 1938. 

The Tarlton High School students were transferred to the 
new Salt Creek Centralized School as of September 18, 
1916. The Tarlton School Board maintained the elemen-
tary school grades 1-8 until the fall of 1948. At that time, 
the school was closed and the students were transported 
to the Salt Creek Centralized School. 

In 1967 Mrs. Ash bought the school building and the 
land. In 1969 Delbert Ash, her son, took the building 
down and built his present home on the site. 

According to an 1871 plat map of Tarlton, an L-shaped 
brick school was built at the southeast corner of the 
town. The land was owned by Joseph Shoemaker around 
1844 and in 1871 by F. W. Nye. It was directly south of 
the southeast corner of the old cemetery and in the cen-
ter of the northeast quarter of Section 3, Township 11, 
Range 20. 

Most of the residents and historians have no knowledge 
of this school and say that a slaughter house was at the 
same location. 
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The 1899 three-room school 
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Leistsville School Dec. 10, 1896, Board Member Milton Dresbach in chair 

On April 11, 1835, Thomas and Mary Winship sold ¼ acre 
of land in Section 7, Township 11, Range 20 of the 
Worthington Survey. The land was located in the 
northeast corner of the northeast quarter of Section 7. 
It was sold to George Dresbach, William Gill, Christian 
Forest, school directors for $5.00, recorded in Volume 
42, page 125, Pickaway County, Ohio. 

A brick one-room schoolhouse was built in 1835. 

The teacher in 1898 was Charles H. Karshner. The 
school board member for 1899 was Milton Dresbach. 

On September 8, 1917, Oscar Morris paid $250 for the 
building and the land. Owners since that time have 
been Joseph Moats, Henry Legg and Isaac McFarland 
who sold the property to Philip Brown in December 
1969. He took the brick school building down in 1972. 
He built a new home on the property and lives there 
with his family.  

Some teachers at the school were Charles Karshner, 
Harley Markel, E. C. Friece, Moody Roberts and George 
Bockert. 
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In 1805 a log one-room school was built on the Joseph 
Shoots property in Section 33. It was the first school in 
the southwest part of the township. Timothy Beach was 
the teacher. 

The building was taken apart and moved to Whisler to 
the location of the now Presbyterian Church. Church 
services were held in the schoolhouse until June 1, 1860, 
when the new Presbyterian Church was built and the log 
school moved some 400 feet north of its location further 
up Jackson Road. It was sold by a Mr. Vance to Tom 
Huffman for the sum of $50.00. Carson “Larky” Huffman 
(Tom’s son) and Helen Huffman lived in it from April 
1934 until it was sold to Kenneth “Yobby” and Daisy 
Moss in 1979. It still stands as a residence today. It has 
some additions to the original structure. 

Carson Huffman was custodian at the Salt Creek Central-
ized School from 1953 to 1961. Mrs. Ruth Fox (Carson’s 
daughter) has been a teacher’s aide at Salt Creek Ele-
mentary School from 1975 to the present. 

In 1857, a wood frame school was built and used until 
1877. It later became a blacksmith shop and a barn. It 
was taken down in the early 1950s. It was located at the 

southwest corner of the intersection of Jackson Road 
and Hayesville-Adelphi Road. The transfer of this proper-
ty took place on April 27, 1857, and was deeded from 
William Webster and his wife to the school board. It was 
sold for $1.00. The property consisted of 10½ rods com-
mencing at the Abraham Heffner property and the 
northeast corner of the Samuel Whisler land, and 3½ 
rods north and 3 road east in Section 32, Township 11, 
Range 20. This is recorded in Volume 33, page 192, Pick-
away County, Ohio.   

On April 19, 1876, George and Mary Holderman sold 1½ 
acres of land to the Salt Creek Board of Education for the 
sum of $150. This transfer is recorded in Volume 45, 
page 277, Pickaway County, Ohio. It was located in the 
northeast quarter of Section 32, and being at an iron 
harrow tooth driven into the middle of the Salt Creek 
and Salem Turnpike unto a bridge over a small branch 
known as Kick-a-poo Creek, named for the Indians of the 
area in earlier times. In 1877, a brick one-room school 
was built on the land by W. H. Rayman for $310.90, la-
bor costs. In 1887 an addition of 28 feet by 38 feet was 
built by L. G. Gardener for a total cost of $1086.75. 

This picture was taken in the fall of 1914.  The teacher is G. H. Armstrong.  
He taught grades 5-8.  The teacher pictured at Mr. Armstrong’s left is Mar-
tha McGee.  She was the teacher for grades 1-4. 
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The school was under the jurisdiction of the Hocking 
County School Board because the school was located 
closer to the Hocking County area. It was governed by 
them until May 1, 1916. Then on January 20, 1917, the 
Hocking County School Board transferred the jurisdiction 
of the school to the Salt Creek Board of Education. 

On March 10, 1917, Albert Paxton purchased the land 
and the brick school building for $510.00. Other owners 
of this property have been George Justice, William Moss, 
and Ralph Dresbach, who took it down in 1964. Joe and 
Herb Speakman are the present owners of the land. 
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In 1837 John and Christina Reichelderfer sold ¼ acre of 
land to Peter Parcels and Lewis Renick, school directors 
for the sum of $2.00. It was located at the southeast 
quarter of Section 22, Township 11, Range 20 of the Chil-
licothe and Land District. This location is at the east end 
and south side of Goose Alley or Chilcote Alley or String-
town Alley and faces the Tarlton-Adelphi Road. The 
transaction is recorded in Volume 15, page 355, Picka-
way County, Ohio. 

On September 1, 1857, there was an additional land 
transfer from John and Christina Reichelderfer to the Salt 
Creek School Board, recorded in Volume 32, page 135. 

The school board members at this time were John S. 
Crites, Samuel Strouse and John Strouse. 

In 1898 the teacher of the school was William Scherr. In 
1899 the board member was Levi Lutz. 

Because of a lack of enrollment, this school was closed 
for the 1906-1907 school term. It reopened in Septem-
ber 1907. 

On January 13, 1917 Stanley Imler purchased the land 
and the school building from the Salt Creek School Board 
for $300.00. It still stands as a residence today. 
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On May 12, 1870 George and Christina Hosler sold ¾ of 
an acre to the school board. The land was located at the 
northeast corner of the northeast quarter of Section 23, 
Township 11, Range 20 of the Chillicothe Land District. 
The purchase price was $75.00. This transaction is rec-
orded in Volume 71, page 382, Pickaway County, Ohio. 

The brick one-room school was built on the south side 
of South Perry Road and on the west side of a lane at 
the top of the ridge, in the corner of the field where the 
lane and road meet. The lane was at one time a road. 

In 1898 the teacher was John D. Hummel. In 1899 the 
board member was P. G. Giffin. 

On September 8, 1917 Stanley Imler purchased the 
property from the Salt Creek School Board for the price 
of $225.00. 

In 1951 Charles L. Speakman, owner of the property, 
took the building down. He still owns the land today. 
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On May 13, 1846, Daniel Creits (Crites) sold an acre of 
land to school directors, Peter Mowrer, John L. Crites and 
George Puffenbarger for the sum of $1.00. The land was 
located at the northwest quarter of Section 15, Township 
11, Range 20. The transaction is recorded in Volume 22, 
page 342, Pickaway County, Ohio. 

A frame one-room school was built on this property. 

On April 26, 1870, Elias and Susannah Crites sold ½ acre 
or 80 square poles of land to the school board for 
$50.00, recorded in Volume 41, page 221, Pickaway 
County, Ohio. The land was located in the northwest cor-
ner of the northwest quarter of Section 15. 

A one-room brick school was built on the property. On 
September 31, 1891, the bell and belfry were erected. 

The school was closed for the 1906-1907 school term 
due to a lack of enrollment. It was reopened in the fall of 
1907. 

On September 14, 1917, Rachel Fraunfelter purchased 
the property from the school board for $75.00. 

This building still stands today on land belonging to Fran-
cis Fraunfelter. It is located on the south side of Spangler 
Road, east of Kime-Holderman Road. 

 

Crites School in 1983; Carey Suzanne Bower in front of the school 
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Crites School; Ruth Strous, Teacher 
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In 1828 Henry Imler donated land for a church (which 
was built in 1875), a cemetery, and a school recorded in 
Volume 1, page 14, Pickaway County, Ohio. There are no 
records to show that a school was actually built on this 
land, however. 

On August 17, 1869, Peter and Heester Ann Frieas, sold 
1 acre of land to school directors James B. Parcels, Wil-
liam Parcels, George Holderman, James Reichelderfer, 
Elias Lester, John Mowery, Moses Imler and John 
Strouse. The property was located in the northeast quar-
ter of Section 20, Township 11, Range 20, of the Chillico-
the Land District. The transfer is recorded in Volume 41, 
page 110, Pickaway County, Ohio. 

On December 24, 1852, there was an additional land 
purchase for the school with the transfer being from 
Stanley Bochert to the school directors, David Harman, 
Joseph Foust and Pleasant Brock. The sum it was sold for 
was $50.00 and the transaction was recorded in Volume 
29, page 163. The land was 52 rods from the southwest 
corner of Stanley Bochert’s land, continuing 18 feet 
along Jackson Road. 

The road of that day was located approximately 500 feet 
east of where the present day Jackson Road crosses 
State Route 56. 

A one-room brick school was built on the property. The 
playground area was east of the school building, where 
Jackson Road and the George Myers property are now 
located. 

In 1898 the teacher was Harley Markel. In 1899 the 
school board member was Oscar B. Lutz. 

In 1907 the bell and belfry were added to the school. 

This school district was united with districts 9 and 11 on 
September 17, 1877. 

On January 13, 1917, Stanley Imler purchased the school 
building and land for $300.00. Stanley Imler’s brother 
lived in the schoolhouse until it was sold to Mr. and Mrs. 
Harry Jones. They remodeled it and sold it to Kyle Martin 
in 1961. The Martin family lived there until 1967, when 
their son, Howard Martin, bought the property. He lives 
there with his family today, at the southwest corner of 
the intersection of State Route 56 and Jackson Road. 
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Front Row:  Gerald Robinet, Lester Poling, Ronald Imler, Gail Heffner, Noble Shirkey, Harry Bochard, Carl Valentine, 

_______ Smyers. 

Second Row:  Opal Poling, Aribel Cook, Ira Valentine, Edgar DeLong, Judson Poling, Peggy Friece, Genevieve Cook, 

Ruth Robinett, Eleanor Robinett. 

Third Row:  Alva A. White (teacher), Willie Vancicle, Gordon Valentine, Guy Valentine, Edna Valentine, Hazel Poling, 

Nina Vancicle, D.W. Macklin (supt.) 
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Imler School 

January 18, 1987 

First Row:  Clarence Heffner, Denver Lutz, Unknown, Edna Lutz, Unknown, Lula Lutz, Un-
known, Unknown, Unknown, Earl Heffner (far right on the end). 

Second Row:  Harley Markel (teacher), Unknown, Unknown, Myrtle Lutz, the rest unknown. 
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This school district included the southwest section of 
Salt Creek Township and the southeast section of Picka-
way Township. It was originally a log structure built to 
be used as a school and also by the M. E. Church around 
1859. The building was taken down and the present two
-room brick school building was erected on the same 
location. This brick school was built up to the standards 
of the late 1800s complete with a belfry and a coal cel-
lar. 

The school was a joint effort of the Pickaway Township 
and Salt Creek Township school directors. The students 
Salt Creek Township who attended this school came 
from the area between the school and the imaginary 
line north from Prairie View Cemetery to the Heffner 
Road and south to the County Line Road, which was a 
crude mud trail at that time. 

Both townships used the building until they both consol-
idated their one-room schools into a centralized system. 
The Pickaway Township Centralized School was built in 
1912. The Salt Creek Township boys and girls attended 
the Whisler School until the Salt Creek Township Cen-
tralized School was built in 1916.The Oak Grove School 
building stood on the northwest corner of the intersec-
tion of Hayesville-Adelphi Road and the Salt Creek-
Pickaway Township line road, west of Whisler, and on 
land owned by George and Carolyn Minshall. 

This land was deeded to the Pickaway Township school 
directors in 1851 by Josiah Francis and recorded in Vol-
ume 25 page 531, Pickaway County, Ohio. 

 

 



33 

 



34 

 

On April 16, 1855, John Strouse sold an acre of land to 
the school directors. The land was located in the east 
half of Section 36, Township 11, Range 20. It was north 
of a branch of Salt Creek, known as Toad Run, and on 
the north side of the Salt Creek Valley Turnpike. It was 
opposite the turnpike bridge across Toad Run. This 
transaction was recorded in Volume 30, page 154, of 
the Pickaway County Records. The land was sold to the 
school directors for $1.00. 

On September 18, 1869, John and Angeline Strouse sold 
land to the school directors, so that a foot bridge could 
be erected across Salt Creek for the students to use. It 

was necessary so that children from the Adelphi area 
and Laurelville, south of Salt Creek, could attend school. 
In 1901 a second bridge was erected to replace the orig-
inal one.  

In 1898, the teacher at the school was E. D. Ricketts. In 
1899 the school board member was George B. Arm-
strong. 

On March 10, 1917, Edward Strouse purchased the 
school and the school and the land from the school di-
rectors for $250.00. The brick school building was taken 
down around 1925. 
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The Pickaway County Board of Education was formed in 
1914. John H. Cook was the County Superintendent of 
Schools.  This began the movement to centralize all the  
one-room schools in each township in the county.  Jack-
son Township was the first to do so. 

On November 13, 1915, the Salt Creek Township School 
Board paid $1000 to B. Frank Conner for five acres of 
land, recorded in Volume 94, page 295, Pickaway Coun-
ty, Ohio. The purchase of this land would enable them to 
build the centralized school. The school board members 
were William H. Shupe, president of the board from 
1916 to 1931; Wallace Bochert, clerk and township 
clerk; Sam H. Lesher, Elmer R. Karshner and Floyd L. 
Dunkle. 

Also on Saturday, November 13, 1915, the school board 
called upon the voters to render a verdict to determine 
the welfare of the boys and girls and the future of the 
township. The ballots recorded the friends and enemies 
of the cause for education in Salt Creek Township. The 
issue passed. The centralized school would be built. 

The L. D. Hetrick and Brothers, General Contractors of 
Columbus, Ohio bid for the school building, including 
materials and furnishings, was $21,947. 

The building had two natural gas heaters installed by the 
Columbus Heating and Ventilating Company. 

The gas was supplied from a well drilled by Harley Nog-
gle. It was located at the northeast side of the building in 
an area now sealed and covered by a cement cover. Be-
cause of some problems, a steel ball was dropped into 
the casing and cement was poured on top of it to seal 
the well. 

L. D. Hetrick and Brothers constructed the sewage filtra-
tion system for the $742. Harley Fraunfelter dug by hand 
and laid 61 rods of 6-inch tile, costing $33.55, from the 
cesspool to the road for $49.20. 

Other firms involved in the construction were E. F. 
Houghton Heat regulation, Huffman-Conklin Plumbing 
Contractors, Matheny, Allen, and Mounts Architects. 

Installation of lightning rods cost $400. 

Eight horse-drawn, wooden school wagons were built by 
J. A. McLaughlin Brothers for $230 each. 

Seventeen hitching posts were installed along the front 
walk and playground area at a cost of 30 cents each. 

John Hoffman was paid $750 to construct and paint the 
school barn along the north fence line. He was to put 
spouting on the south side of the building only. 

The drivers cared for their horses and wagons each day 
in the barn. The drivers were paid a salary of $45.00 per 
month. 

Salt Creek School on Opening Day of 1916 
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Front Row (L-R):  Ronald Imler, Ralph Strous, Ottie Hockman, Bessie Arledge, Bruce Imler, Lester Poling. 

Second Row:  Iola McGinnis, ? Alexander, Jeanette Hockman, Edna Dunkle, Helen Alexander, Eva Morri-
son, ? Welch, John Brigner. 

Third Row:  Clarence Weaver, Roy Karshner, Paul McGinnis, Kenneth Kreider, Ivor Karr, ??, Edwin Judy, 
Beman Shirkey 

Back Row: Carson Huffman, Paul Smelts, Winfield Koch, Grace Koch, Dorothy Justice, Louise Karr, Bill Al-
exander, ? Welch 
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Salt Creek Centralized School 

1917-18 First and Second Grades 

Marie Karshner, teacher 

First Row: Dorothy Justice, Clarence Judy, Lewis Dumm, ? Dumm, John Cox, Raymond Hedges, Helen Justice, George 
Lutz. 

Second Row: Gladys Poling, Lucille Poling, Helen Jones, Unknown, Ruth Karr, Oma Drum, rest unknown. 

Third Row: Lloyd Whisler, Unknown, Margie Robinette, Unknown, Unknown, William Arledge, Ralph Fox, Royce 
Dumm, Claude Kreider 

Fourth Row: Charles Fox, Gay Morrison, Clayton Hockman, Millard Heffner, Gladys Coffenbarger, Esther Alderderfer, 
Blanche Waliser, Margie Shupe, Mona Hall. 

Fifth Row: Unknown, ? Alexander, Unknown, Goldie Julian, John Allen, Dorothy McNeal. 
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Salt Creek Centralized School 

1916-1917 Third and Fourth Grades 

Ethel Noggle, teacher 

First Row: Ronald Imler, Ralph Strous, Ottie Hockman, Bessie Arledge, Bruce Imler, Lester Poling 

Second Row: Ida McGinnis, ? Alexander, Jeanette Hockman, Edna Dunkle, Helen Aldenderfer, Elva Morri-
son, Unknown, John Brigner 

Third Row: Clarence Weaver, Roy Karshner, Paul Hamilton, Kenneth Kreider, Ivor Karr, Unknown, Edwin 
Judy, Beman Shirkey 

Back Row: Carson Huffman, Ray Johnson, Winfield Koch, Grace Koch, Dorothy Justice, Louise Karr, ? Alex-
ander, Unknown 
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On August 24, 1916, the school board gave the township 
trustees permission to build a tool shed on the property 
in which to store their road equipment. 

Also on August 24, 1916, the school board insured the 
new school building with Hummel and Plum Insurance 
Company at a cost of $194.70. The coverage was for 
$1700 fire and lightning for five years and $1200 cyclone 
for three years. The barn was insured for $1000 fire and 
lightning and $500 cyclone coverage. 

The principal, E. S. Nesbit, was paid a salary of $100 per 
month. The high school teacher, Alice Sherman, was 
paid $75 per month. The high school music teacher was 
Frances Riegal and her salary was $65 per month. The 
elementary teacher was paid not less than $3.50 or 
more than $4.50 a day. The custodian was Henry Cramer 
and his salary was $40 per month. The truant officer, 
Arthur Heffner was paid $1.50 per trip. 

An American flag was purchased for the school in 1917 
for $4.25. The flag pole was located on top of the front 
of the building. Three gallons of rayolight, for school use, 
cost 38 cents. Five gallons of oil cost 75 cents. A case of 
toilet paper cost 60 cents. A Singer sewing machine was 
purchased October 8, 1919, for $31.75. 

The Salt Creek Centralized School opened for high school 
classes September 18, 1916. The grade school classes 
started at the new school on November 1, 1916. 

In January 1917, the school board voted to sell all the 
brick one-room school buildings, not in use, at a private 
sale to the highest bidder. 

From December 1919 to January 1920 the Pickaway 
County Board of Health closed the Salt Creek Centralized 
School due to a smallpox epidemic. 

In the 1920s the horse-drawn wagons were replaced by 
motor driven buses. 

The only time students bought lunch at school was on 
election day. The home economics class cooked a meal 
for the voters and poll keepers. All other days the stu-
dents packed their lunches. 

The home economics department was in the small build-
ing at the rear of the school. This building was the town-
ship house prior to being moved by horses and a turn-
stile winch to this location before the 1920s. 

In 1937 an army surplus metal building was erected at 
the northwest and rear corner of the school building. It 
was used as a cafeteria until 1967, when the present 
kitchen and storage area were built inside the present 
gym. The old building was taken down in 1979. 

The school water supply came from a cistern at the rear 
of the building but as a need for yet more water present-
ed itself, Mr. Harley Moss of Whisler was brought in to 
search for water. He discovered water by the peach 
bough method. The Horn Brothers drilled the 80-foot 
well which never failed to meet the school’s needs. The 
well was located approximately 100 feet from the south-
east corner of the old school building. The present water 
supply is a spring located 700 feet south of the school on 
the Chilcote land. 

The students maintained a general supply store for the 
merchandise students needed each day. Revenue from 
the store helped to provide an outside basketball court 
and playground equipment for the students and the 
public. 

In May 1948 the Tarlton grade school was closed and in 
September those students were transported to the Salt 
Creek Township Centralized School along with the high 
school students who had already been attending. 

The high school was attended by students from Laurel-
ville, Adelphi and South Perry, who furnished their own 
transportation. 

In the words of Harold A. Strous, former student and a 
past superintendent of Salt Creek School: “As springtime 
rolled around and our ambitions for being out of doors 
ran high, participation in track was enjoyed by almost 
everyone. We were donated practice fields on the ad-
joining farms nearby and accessible for use by the school 
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students. Seldom was Salt Creek second in their track 
efforts. YEA, SALT CREEK, WIN—AND WE DID! This why 
my love ran high and I climbed the stile over the fence 
leading to the practice field many times.” 

Prior to 1956, the auditorium and gym for the school was 
located in rooms that are now the library and a class-
room. Folding doors separated the two rooms before the 
present wall was added. 

Then in 1955, the school board studied several locations 
and ideas for the new addition of classroom and gymna-
sium. The new fire proof addition was completed for the 
beginning of school in the fall of 1956. The school board 
members at this time were Francis J. Fraunfelter, presi-
dent; Arnold Reichelderfer, vice presidents; Nelson E. 
Jones, clerk; Orley Judy; George D. Maxson; Chester 
McDaniels. Walter C. Haney was the superintendent and 
George D. McDowell was the county superintendent of 
schools. The firms involved in the construction of the 
addition were Kellam and Foley, Columbus architects; 
Sever-Williams Company, general contractors from 
Washington C. H.; Scioto Plumbing and Heating, Inc., 
plumbing contractors from Chillicothe; Columbus 
Heating and Ventilating, heating contractors from Co-
lumbus. The new addition cost $135,000 to build and 
furnish. 

In the fall of 1955 a strong gas leak was noticed. It was 
thought that the closed gas well could be reopened and 
used to fuel the new building furnace. On February 20, 
1956, Jim Goble was hired to clean out the well and de-
termine the amount of gas present. Mr. Goble drilled to 
a depth of 16 feet where he struck an iron object and 
was unable to drill any deeper. A mixture fire clay and 
water were poured into the pipe to seal the well and a 
two-inch diameter vent pipe added. The casing was sur-
rounded and covered by a large cement slab. 

On August 6, 1956, the board purchased 120 desk and 
chair units costing $22.00 for each unit. They also pur-

chased four teacher’s desks and chair units costing 
$69.00 each, from the Miller Office Supply Company 
(American Desk Company). 

In 1957 the Logan Elm Local School District was formed 
by the consolidation of Pickaway Township School, Salt 
Creek Township School, Washington Township School 
and part of Circleville Township.   

In 1960, Logan Elm High School was built in Section No. 1 
of Pickaway Township and opened in the fall of that year.  
The board members were Wells Wilson, president; Frank 
Graves, vice president; Orley Judy; Judson Beougher; 
David Bolender; and Ann Elsea as clerk.  Mr. Carl S. Burg-
er was the executive head and John J. Henn was the prin-
cipal. 

In 1971, the George D. McDowell Exchange School was 
built and named in honor of Mr. George D. McDowell, 
Pickaway County Superintendent of Schools from 1934-
1970. 

In 1972, a portion of the West Hocking School District 
(Laurelville area) was transferred into the Logan Elm Lo-
cal School District.  All of Salt Creek and Perry  Township, 
plus a portion of Laurel Township, all in Hocking County, 
were added at that time. 

The Logan Elm Local School District was at that time 
composed of four elementary schools (grades 1-6), one 
middle school (7-8), and one senior high school (9-12).  
Kindergarten was offered at two sites.  Vocational school 



47 

 

students attended the Pickaway-Ross Joint Vocational 
School located in Ross County. 

Today the Logan Elm Local School District is located in 
Pickaway and Hocking Counties.  The total school district 
encompasses approximately 212 square miles.  The dis-
trict is rural in nature with good to excellent agricultural 
areas in the Pickaway Plains. 

All levels of the socio-economic scale are represented 
among the residents of the school district.  Most of the 
citizens could be described as having average incomes 
with a variety of business owners, managers, profession-
als, industrial and plant workers.  The residents of the 
school district have demonstrated a determination to 
maintain schools of above average quality.  Considera-
ble community effort has been expended to support this 
goal.  

[The author of this book has updated Mr. Bower’s book 
from this point on.] Salt Creek remained a K-6 school 
until the beginning of the 2012-2013 school year when it 
became an intermediate school for grades 5 and 6.  Stu-
dents from Laurelville, Pickaway, Salt Creek and Wash-
ington were bused to Salt Creek.  Therefore, the stu-
dents were combined before attending McDowell Mid-
dle School.  This was to make the transition into high 
school easier for the students of the district. 

On May 24, 2023, students left Salt Creek for the last 
time.  Logan Elm residents passed a bond levy in 2018 to 
build a new K-12 school building.  The vote was 3,211-
2,657.  For the first time in over 200 years, Salt Creek 
Township had no school located within its local borders 
for its students to attend. 

[This ends Mr. Robert  Bower’s book.] 

An architect’s drawing of the new K-12 buildings.   

The picture below shows the school being built in 2022 
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[The following article appeared in the newspaper.  Pho-
tos added by this book’s author.] 

With a display of memorabilia and 180 guests, personnel 
at Salt Creek Elementary recently celebrated the rural 
school’s 75th anniversary.   

During the September 22 open house, stories were told 
and memories recalled about past students, teachers, 
administrators and board members.  On display were 
pictures of graduating classes from 1916-1960, the years 
Salt Creek served as a high school. 

The Salt Creek Centralized School, built at a cost of 
$21,927, first opened for high school classes on Sept. 18, 
1916 with grade school classes beginning two months 
later. 

Students came from the communities of Tarlton, Laurel-
ville, Adelphi, Hallsville and several surrounding areas, 
riding to classes in horse-drawn wagons (drivers were 
paid $45 per month). 

District superintendent in 1916 was D. W. Macklin with 
C. S. Nesbit serving as principal (with a salary of $100 per 
month).  High school teacher Alice Sherman received $75 
per month and the grade school teachers were paid 
$3.50 to $4.50 per day; the custodian got $40 pre month 
and the truant officer was paid $1.50 per “trip.” 

Other noteworthy dates in Salt Creek’s history include 
the year 1917, when football was introduced as their 
first competitive sport; and 1920, when their first year-
book, the Aurora, was published.  It was during the 
1920s that the horse-drawn wagons were replaced by 
motor driven buses, and baccalaureate and commence-
ment exercises were established. 

Class night, school fairs, operettas and chapel services 
were added to the school’s activities during the 1930s, 
and the 1930-32 boys’ basketball team won the county 
championship. 

In 1939-40, Salt Creek’s Doro-
thy Van Voorhis organized the 
high school’s first, and only, 
band.  Junior and senior class 
plays and trips were added dur-
ing the 1940s. 

In 1946, enrollment increased 
when Tarlton Elementary 
School closed and its students 

began attending Salt Creek.  
One noteworthy former em-
ployee, Chester A. Roush, who 
was a teacher and coach at the 
school in 1971-42, currently 
serves as president of the Ohio 
School Board. 

In 1954, voters passed a 
$135,000 bond issue that al-
lowed the addition of four, 
fireproof classrooms to the 
school with student occupation in 1956. 

Salt Creek high school students were moved to Logan 
Elm Highs School in 1960; grades seven and eight moved 
out when McDowell Exchange School was built in 1971.  
Today, students in grades kindergarten through sixth 
attend school in the original building. 

Also honored during the anniversary open house were 
graduates who returned to teach at Salt Creek including 
Harold Strous, Eldon Armstrong, Helen Mettler, Agnes 
Schall, Julia Archer, Esther Chilcote, Jeanette Hockman 
Chilcote, Merle Kuhn, Margaret Chilcote, Walter Cham-
bers and Dale Drake. 

 

 

Connie Rohr, News Reporter 

 

 

        Eldon Armstrong       Helen Mettler           Agnes Schall 
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[This history and time line were from the bulletin hand-
ed out to alumni during the 75th anniversary program.  
Photos have been added by the author of this book.] 

On November 13, 1915, the Salt Creek Township School 
Board paid $1,000 to B. Frank Conner for five acres of 
land, recorded in Volume 94, page 295, Pickaway Coun-
ty, Ohio.  The purchase of this land would enable them 
to build the Salt Creek Centralized School. 

On November 13, 1915, the voters passed the school 
levy for the new centralized school.  The bid of $21,927 
to construct the school was accepted from L. D. Hetrick 
and Brothers, General Contractors of Columbus, Ohio.  
The school sewage system cost was $824.75. 

Members of the first school board were W. H. Shupe, 
president, S. H. Lesher, E. R. Karshner, F. L. Dunkle, O. E. 
Judy, and Wallace  Bockert, clerk. 

 

The Salt Creek Centralized School opened for high 
school classes September 18, 1916.  The grade school 
classes started at the new school on November 1, 1916. 

Eight grade schools consolidated into Salt Creek.  Stu-
dents attended Salt Creek from Tarlton, Laurelville, 
Adelphi, Hallsville and other areas.  The students from 
Laurelville High School and Adelphi High School attend-
ed Salt Creek for their fourth year of high school until 
around 1925 since their high schools were only for 
three years. 

Students were provided transportation to school in 
horse-drawn wagons.  Drivers cared for their horses and 
wagons daily in the school barn and were paid $45 per 
month. 

District Superintendent in 1916 was Dewalt W. Macklin.  
The principal, Clyde S. Nesbit was paid a salary of $100 
per month, the high school teacher, Alice Sherman, $75 
per month and the elementary teacher was paid not 

less than $3.50 or more than $4.50 per day.  The first 
custodian was Henry Cramer and his salary was $40 per 
month.  The truant officer, Arthur Heffner, was paid 
$1.50 for each home visit. 

Mr. Cornelius O. Edington served as superintendent 
from 1917-1920.  He favored strong parental participa-
tion.  Superintendent Edington started the Mother’s 
Club similar to the current Parent Teachers’ Organiza-
tion.  The Mother’s Club sponsored dinners and other 
activities to benefit Salt Creek. 

In 1917, Mr. Alva White, fifth 
and sixth grade teacher, or-
ganized an incentive reading 
program.  Mr. White ar-
ranged for a set of books for 
the students to read.  Prizes 
and certificates were given to 
the students for reading the 
books.  Later this plan be-
came the Ohio Reading Cir-
cle.  In the 1950s, Mr. White 
returned to Salt Creek as a 
retired teacher and served as 
a substitute teacher. 

The first competitive sport at Salt Creek was football.  
Members of the 1917 team were Richard Ballard, Don-
ald Bookwalter, Howard Hinton, Merle McGinnis, Har-
old Strous, and Chic Williamson.  Research shows that 
at the championship game of the season “Soapy” Hin-
ton was faced with the decision of catching the winning 
pass or to holding on to his pants that were falling.  
Vanity won and Salt Creek lost.  Howard Hinton later 
became Chief of Police in Columbus, Ohio. 

From the 75th Anniversary Program 

 

Alva White 
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In 1919, the Alumni Association was organized.  In 1920 
the first yearbook, the Aurora, was published.  In the 
1920s, the horse-drawn wagons were replaced by motor 
driven buses.  In October 1921, the first school fair was 
held. 

In the early 1920s, Mr. Lewis Barb was the agricultural 
teacher and initiated the Smith Hughes Agricultural pro-
gram which was the forerunner of the current vocational 
agricultural programs. 

During this time, graduation ceremonies of baccalaure-
ate and commencement were established for graduating 
seniors. 

 

Classes and activities that had been established contin-
ued as the school progressed.  Class nights, school fairs, 
operettas, and chapel services were new activities during 
this decade. 

High school basketball games were played at Tarlton.  
The 1930-31 boys’ basketball team captured the county 
championship.  Members of the team were Judson 

Beougher, Jack Chilcote, Jim Hartranft, Merle Hartranft, 
Harold Horn, Wilby Johnson, Paul Neff, Albert Spangler, 
and Coach, Marvin Miller. 

Mr. Harold A. Strous was employed as principal for the 
1934-35 school year and served in that position until he 
was employed as superintendent in the fall of 1937.  He 
served as superintendent until 1955. 

In 1939-40, Salt Creek High School had its first and only 
band.  It was organized by music teacher, Dorothy Van 
Voorhis, to play for the annual school fair held at Salt 
Creek. 

Back then yo-yos were popular and challenged the 
teachers; a flying yo-yo through the library door window 
challenged the principal. 

 

Enrollment was small at Salt Creek compared to other 
schools in the county.  Students placed well in county 
and state testing.  Students were known for being man-
nerly and courteous.  These qualities were stressed by 
the faculty and administration.  During this time, stu-
dents also attained excellent sports recognition. 

Chester A. Roush was employed as teacher and coach in 
1941 and 1942.  He is currently president (1991) of the 
Ohio School Board Association. 

During these years, junior and senior class plays and 
class trips were a part of the yearly activities and contin-
ued through the 1950s. 

In 1946, the Tarlton grade school closed and the Tarlton 
elementary students then attended Salt Creek School for 
the first time. 

In 1948, Salt Creek High School basketball team placed 
as runners-up in the County Basketball Tournament. 

Track teams excelled.  Salt Creek 
High School could be on a com-
petitive basis with the other coun-
ty schools.  Many individuals did 
well in track and won blue rib-
bons.  In 1947, Carl Justice placed 
first in the state in the half mile 
event.  Carl was selected by the 
coaches to the Class B All State 
Track Team.  In 1948, the com-
bined boys and girls track teams from Salt Creek won 
second place in the county. 

 

Academic success continued.  During the period of the 
1950s, old and new student activities included junior and 
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senior class plays, orchestra, All-County Music Festival in 
the Coliseum at the Pickaway County Fairgrounds, Na-
tional Honor Society, and sports consisting of basketball 
and track.  End of the year activities included the senior 
class trip, junior-senior banquet and prom, class night, 
baccalaureate and commencement. 

In 1954, the Salt Creek Board members Francis Fraun-
felter, president; Arnold Reichelderfer, Orley Judy, 
George Maxson, Chester McDaniels and Nelson Jones, 
clerk, submitted a bond issue for $135,000 to the voters 
to build and equip four fireproof classrooms and a multi-
purpose room.  This additional space had been badly 
needed and the voters responded favorably.  In the fall 
of 1956, this was completed, and the students were 
moved into the new facility. 

Another first for Salt Creek occurred in 
1959.  Gary Valentine received the Bob 
Bowsher award. 

An Alumni Banquet has been held annu-
ally at Salt Creek School. 

 

 

In 1960, the Salt Creek High School students moved to 
Logan Elm.  Salt Creek had grades 1-8. 

McDowell Exchange was built in 1971.  Grades 7 and 8 
moved to the new facility.  During the years of 1971 – 
1991, Salt Creek had grades 1-6. 

Former Graduates who Returned to Teach 

Graduates who returned to teach at Salt Creek were Har-
old Strous, Eldon Armstrong, Helen Mettler, Agnes 
Schall, Julia Archer, Esther Chilcote, Jeanette Hockman 
Chilcote, Merle Kuhn, Margaret Chilcote, Walter Cham-
bers and Dale Drake. 

Harold A. Strous 

Harold A. Strous was principal from 
1934-1937, superintendent from 1937
-1955 and teacher from 1955-1960.  In 
the school year of 1934-35, Harold A. 
Strous came to Salt Creek School to 
start his many years to teach, coach, 
counsel and supervise the students 

enrolled at Salt Creek.  He was a very dedicated man to 
the filed of education.  Undoubtedly, he guided many 
young people down the road of success.  He not only 
taught from the book, but from general reasoning, such 
as self-respect, respect for others, respect for property, 
manners, cleanliness and personal appearance.  In plain 
words, he made you into a good citizen for the future.  
He was an outstanding gentleman and an educator. 

The Chilcote Family 

In 1911, the first child of the John Chilcote family en-
tered school.  The six children of this family graduated 
from Salt Creek.  They each graduated from college in 
the field of education, and all were teachers.  They were 
Claude, John L. (known as J. L.), James, Hazel, Esther and 
Margaret, who retired from Salt Creek. 
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When the finishing touches were being put on Salt Creek 
School in 1916, Europe was at war, Woodrow Wilson was 
U.S. President, and the first 40-hour work week was in-
troduced. Now, 100 years later, the students and admin-
istration are celebrating all of the history that has come 
between 1916 and 2016 with a public open house on Oc-
tober 30. 

Principal Michael Eicher and Intervention Socialist Tony 
Blubaugh have been working closely with the Salt Creek 
Alumni Association to plan the school’s centennial cele-
bration.   “We have been working on collecting all kinds 
of historical pictures and memorabilia,” Eicher said.  
“We’ve worked with the Pickaway County Historical and 
Genealogical Society, and I have stacks and stacks of cop-
ies in my office that they’ve sent us.  We have all of the 
photos of the staff and the students that have been here 
since 1916 and those items will be on display throughout 
the building.” 

Blubaugh said that the original school had nine class-
rooms and taught grades one through 12 until 1960.  To-

day, the school is known as Salt Creek Intermediate 
School and serves fifth and sixth grades.  She said that 
the alumni association is trying to track down the oldest 
living graduate of Salt Creek and just may have found her. 
“We’re going on the year that she graduated, and if that 
is correct, she is over 100 years old,” Blubaugh said. 

Eicher said his research has taught him how the local cul-
ture has changed over the decades. “You were never al-
lowed to wear jeans, all of your clothing had to be 
pressed, and they wore knickers back in the day,” he said. 
“Some of the students would wear heel plates, which 
were very loud, but evidently quite popular back in the 
50s.” 

Eicher said that the alumni association had the idea of 
setting up several school rooms by decades for the open 
house. “The students are working on the decades pro-
ject,” he said.  “Some of the things they will be focusing 
on within the decades rooms will be the Great Depres-
sion, World War II, Civil Rights, and Watergate.  So, we 
are tying this into not just the history of the school, but 
also what was going on in the world and local community 
at the time.” 

Blubaugh said that the students are also working on his-
torical displays, “and our student council will be serving 
as greeters and helping with tours.” 

The public will be treated to chili, cornbread, and a varie-
ty of confections, as well as a live band called The Sterling 
Boys.  “One of the members of the band graduated from 
this school in the 50s, so, he was an alumni of the school 
when it was a high school,’ Blubaugh said. 

The public is invited to the Salt Creek School 100th Anni-
versary Open House on Sunday, October 30, 2016 from 1-
4 p.m. at 13190 Ohio Route 56.  For more information 
call the school at 740-332-4212. 

Jennifer Bahney, Assistant Editor Circleville Herald   Oct. 21, 2016 
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Salt Creek Superintendents 

Dewalt W. Macklin 1916-17 

Cornelius Edington 1917-20 

Charles F. Hill  1920-22 

Ray H. Sponsler  1922-26 

George E. Armstrong 1926-28 

Werter C. Dyer  1928-30 

J. A. B. Wagner  1930-34 

Marvin H. Miller  1934-37 

Harold A. Strous  1937-55 

Walter C. Haney  1955-60 Cornelius Edington 
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Salt Creek Principals 

Clyde S. Nesbitt  1915-19 

Essie Heath  1919-20 

Dewalt Macklin  1920-22 

Harold S. Defenbaugh 1922-24 

Clark Durbin  1924-25 

Robert C. Helmbold 1925-26 

Earl B Sundheimer 1926-29 

Ralph Lane  1929-30 

Marvin Miller  1930-34 

Harold Strous  1934-37 

Lowell H. Chase  1937-40 

Harold Strous**  1940-52 

Alice DeLong  1952-59 

Walter Chambers  1959-60 

Loren Straight  1960-63 

Dale Drake  1963-74 

Charles Pritchard  1974-82 

Paul Blaine  1982-84 

Scott Wilson  1984-86 

David Schiff  1986-95 

Sally Kleon  1995-03 

Marsha Waidelich 2003-11 

Saundra Elsea  2011-15 

Michael Eicher  2015-17 

Ted Dille   2017-23 

 

 

**  It appears that 

Mr. Strous was 

both superinten-

dent and principal 

at this time. No 

record of a princi-

pal can be found.  

Some alumni stat-

ed that Mr. Strous 

held both titles. 

Essie Heath Dewalt Macklin 
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                   Dale Drake     Charles Pritchard                                                             Dr. Paul Blaine 
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                         Scott Wilson                    David Schiff                                                                     Sally Kleon 

                   Marcia Waidelich                  Saundra Elsea 

                 Michael Eicher                                                                     Ted Dille 
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1916 
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Side and Back Views 
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1920-21 

School colors were red and gray.  The school mascot was the warriors.   
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1920-21 
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1923-24 
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1923-24 
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Emmett D. Lutz, School Wagon No.5 c. 1929 
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Maude and Fanny pulling school wagon No. 5 c. 1922 
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Salt Creek school wagon in front of the Leistville Tavern on Route 56 

1917 Wagon Driver William Kraft and daughters Ruth and Eleanor. Horses were Dick and Bill. 
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1921 
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1917 

Curtis Hamilton 

Frances Hemmeger 

Ethel Hinton 

Clay Imler 

Golda McNeal 

Nolene Refern 

 

 

No photos were taken 
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1918 
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Top:  Arlo Waliser, Wendell Haas, Harold Strous, Joseph Archer 

Second arc: Lee Bockert, Ruth Davis, Lawrence Hedges,  Cornelius Edington (Supt), James 

Archer, Mamie Bushee, Wayne Strous 

Middle:  Unknown teacher and teacher Mildred White 

Third arc: Harold Binkley, Eldon Armstrong,  Merrill McGinnis,  teacher Frances Reigel, Floyd 

Reid, Orsie Lanman, Ruth Lutz 

Bottom Arc: Denzill Edington, Florence Karshner Kuhn, Robert Barton, Beatrice Krafthever 
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Top Row: Thelma Hixon, Russell Thompson (teacher), Essie Heath (teacher), Cornelius Ed-

ington (Superintendent), Inez Drum (teacher),  Lewis Barb (teacher), Thelma Hart 

Left  Triangle Clockwise:  Benjamin Ricketts, Helen Mettler, Frances McClelland 

Right Triangle Clockwise: Dallas Poling, Beulah Fox, Ruth DeLong 

Next to bottom row: Wilson Ross, Carrol McNeal, Mary Karshner,  Denver Mowery, Edith 

Lutz, Bessie Imler, Arthur Hinton 

Bottom row:  Ruth Strous,  Gordon Bockert,  Beatrice Daugherty 
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Top Row:  Mildred Kathryn Fetheroff, Mabel Bushee,  Mary Judy,  Dewalt Macklin (princi-

pal), Nellie Kuhn, Leon Butts, Margie Daughtery 

Second Row:  Edith Spangler, Nancy Ellen Dennis,  Edgar DeLong, Mabel Rickett, Adelaide 

Kreider,  Pauline Bowsher 

Third Row:  Ora Fox, Helen Morris,  Lewis Barb (teacher), Charles Hill (Supt), Essie Heath 

(teacher),  Orley Judy 

Bottom Row:  Edward Thomas, Mary Agnes Schaal, Golda Lama, Melvul Smith 
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Salt Creek H.S. Graduates by Last Name 
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Salt Creek Graduates by Year of Graduation 
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A list of Tarlton High School graduates has not been found.  The records may have been lost when the high school was 

transferred to Salt Creek.  From newspaper accounts, there were several years when Tarlton had no graduates.  Infor-

mation on this high school is needed. 
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Salt Creek Township School opened its 
doors in the fall of 1916.  With the con-
struction of a new elementary school, the 
school was closed in 2023 and demolition 
took place in November of that year. 

The demolition started on November 9 and 

was completed on November 20.  It took 

several more days to take away the debris 

and grade the property. Watson General 

Contractor and Demo was in charge of the 

demolition and cleanup.   

The Salt Creek Township trustees were 
given the deed for the property which will 
be used for recreational purposes for the 
residents of the township. 

The gymnasium was the first to be demolished 

The following photos were provided by Tracy Kiger, Carrie Bower Ward and David Beavers 
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The connector building between the original school and gymnasium was next to go . 
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The original building was the last to go. 
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